HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al nmenbers pre

ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

February 24, 2009

3:04 p.m
Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Wes Keller, Co-Chair
John Coghi | |
Bob Lynn
Paul Seat on

Sharon Ci ssna
Li ndsey Hol nes

sent

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATION: T
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW T

No previous act

ELEMEDI Cl NE

TEE ACTI ON

ion to record

W TNESS REG STER

MELODY PRI CE- YONTS, Division Drector

Behavi oral Heal
Sout heast Al ask
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

guestions on th

th
a Regi onal

Presented a Power

e Tel eBehavi or al

STEWART FERGUSCN, Ph. D

Director of Tel

Al aska Native Tri ba

Anchor age, Al as

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
the Al aska Federa

guestions on
(AFHCAN) tel ehe

HOUSE HSS COWM

eheal th
Heal t h Consorti um ( ANTHC)
ka

Presented a Power

alth program

TTEE

Heal t h Consorti um ( SEARHC)

answer ed
Heal t h Program

and answer ed

Health Care Access Network

February 24, 2009



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:04: 39 PM

CO- CHAIR BOB HERRON cal |l ed the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3.04 p. m
Representatives Herron, Keller, Seaton, and Coghill were present
at the call to order. Representatives Lynn, G ssna, and Hol nes
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

Present ati on: Tel enedi ci ne

3:05: 05 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the only order of business would
be a presentation on Tel enedi ci ne.

3: 05: 58 PM

MELODY PRI CE- YONTS, Division Director, Behavi or al Heal t h,
Sout heast Al aska Regional Health Consortium (SEARHC), gave a
Power Point presentation entitled "SEARHC Southeast Al aska
Regional Health Consortium Tel eBehavioral Health Program?”
[Included in the nenbers packets.] She stated that SEARHC had
been offering the Tel eBehavi oral Health program since 2003. She
referred to slide 3, "Wat is TeleBehavioral Health," and
explained that it was wused to provide psychiatric, nental
heal th, and substance abuse treatnent to services in the renote
villages because of the difficulty to bring patients in from
remote villages. She explained that it was supplied by a video
signal over a dedicated phone Iine. She referred to slide 4,
"M ssion," and said the mssion was to

Expand psychiatric and behavioral health services and
related activities wvia |Ilive videoconferencing to
renote villages to provide high-quality behavioral
heal th care.

She stated that, slide 5 "Vision," was for
A virtual conmmunity nental health collaborative that
is decentralized and distributed. Each site has equa
opportunity to «contribute to other sites needs,
wor ki ng together as a team to neet behavioral health
needs.

3:08: 26 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -2- February 24, 2009



V. PRI CE- YONTS expl ai ned t hat t he "Vi deoconf er enci ng
Conponents, " slide 6, i ncluded caneras, video displays,
m crophones, and speakers. She showed slide 7, "Main canera,"”
and said that the canera eye could foll ow novenent. She showed
slide 8, "The Video display," and said the display could be used
with a television or flat screen nonitor. She said that the
"Audi o Conponents," slide 9, included mcrophones and speakers.
She described the "Add-on conponents,” slide 10, which included
a docunent canera, a VCR or DVD, and an el ectroni c whiteboard.

3:09: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what a document canera was.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS expl ained that a docunent could be placed under
the screen so that the viewer could see it. She added that the
el ectroni c whiteboard served |ike the old paper easels.

3:10: 14 PM

M5. PRI CE- YONTS expl ained slide 11, "Wy Tel eBehavi oral Heal t h?"
and stated that it offered year round access to renote areas.

3:11: 04 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON asked if the canmeras were able to get close
enough to be of use in telepsychiatry.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS agreed that it was possible for the canera to
Vi ew enoti ons.

3:12:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the camera lens was preset or
capabl e of zoom

M5. PRI CE- YONTS canera replied that the camera was capable of
zoom from either |ocation.

3:12: 48 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if each person could see the other.

MS. PRI CE- YONTS said that it was a two way canera.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said that she had watched a school board
meeting wth nunerous conmmunity groups, and she asked if it was
possi bl e to include many groups.

M5. PRI CE-YONTS said that SEARHC was designing an Qut-Patient
treatment program which would include many sites sinultaneously.

3:15:34 PM

M5. PRICE-YONTS pointed out that slide 12 and slide 13,
"Tel eBehavioral Health Services," listed sone of the uses which
included psychiatric services, nment al health assessnent,
substance abuse, psychotherapy and prevention services. She

expl ained that SEARHC was able to provide clinical supervision
on a continuous basis with the program

3:17: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if psychotropic nedication refills,
listed on slide 12, included new prescriptions.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS said that both were avail able. She said that
the program allowed SEARHC to provide continuing education to
its field staff.

3:17:48 PM

M5. PRI CE- YONTS pointed to slide 14, "Map of comunities served
by Tel ebehavioral Health,” and named the communities which
offered the program including Skagway, Hoonah, Kake, and
Hydabur g.

3:18:18 PM

M5. PRI CE- YONTS turned to slide 15, a graph of "Jan 04 to Dec 05
Tel eBehavi oral Heal th Encounters,” and pointed out the increased
use of the program

3:18: 47 PM

M5. PRICE-YONTS referred to slide 16, "Telebehavioral Health
Program "™ and stated that it was designed to enpower the renote
community and enhance the provider skills in the villages.

3:19:11 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2009



M5. PRICE-YONTS noved to slide 17, "Telebehavioral Health
Program CGoals:" and indicated that it increased access to
Behavi oral Health services, enpowered the |ocal providers, and
decreased costs.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS expl ained that trainings, peer review, clinica
supervision, and consultation were all designed to "Enmpower
Village Provider's:" slide 18.

M5. PRI CE-YONTS directed attention to slide 19, "Educational
Programming to Village Providers,” and listed consultation,
grand rounds, case conference, nonthly semnars, and special
pr ogranmm ng.

3:19:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the program was effective in the
early detection and allowed people to stay in their conmunity
for treatnent.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if it had effectively reduced
referrals and cri ses.

M5. PRICE-YONTS said that her instinct said yes, but that she
did not have any data to support it.

3:22:24 PM

MS. PRI CE- YONTS turned to slide 20, "A Virtual Community Menta
Health Coll aborative!™ and explained that the community was
decentralized and distri buted.

3:22:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if this program allowed providers to
do a better job, by renoving the enotional isolation.

M5. PRICE-YONTS replied that there was a virtual talking circle
for dealing with the vicarious trauma. She said that SEARHC was
very cogni zant of its providers residing in renote sites.

3:24:11 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 24, 2009



M5. PRI CE- YONTS noted that slide 22, "Best Practices in Video-
conferencing,” included tips for nmintaining eye contact and
appropriate on-canera position.

M5. PRI CE- YONTS expl ained slide 23, "Prepare for the Wrst Case
Scenario,” and suggested to contact the person who handled
difficult technical problens, designate a renote facilitator,
and develop a contingency plan for the renpte site and share it
with the renote facilitator.

3:25: 28 PM

M5. PRICE-YONTS concluded her Power Point wth slide 24,
"Contact Information," which |isted contact personnel at SEARHC.

3:26: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked for her comments on the performance
of the dedicated lines and the infrastructure.

MS. PRI CE-YONTS said that the T-1 lines in all |ocations were
all doing well.

3:26:58 PM

STEWART FERGUSON, Ph.D., Director of Telehealth, Al aska Native
Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC), offered to give a quick
denonstration of the Al aska Federal Health Care Access Network
(AFHCAN) telehealth system He said that SEARHC was a statew de
| eader. He said that the AFHCAN system was designed to use
fifth grade |anguage, so that it could be easily translated into
forei gn | anguages.

3:28:53 PM

MR. FERGUSON said that he would use Co-Chair Keller's persona
data to fill in the exanple. [He connected to an on-line
dat abase. ]

3:30: 51 PM

MR. FERGUSON reflected that the denonstration connection was not
wor ki ng properly. [He disconnected the denonstration.]

3:32: 57 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2009



MR. FERGUSON presented a Power Point titled "The Inpact of
Tel ehealth in Alaska,” [Included in the nmenbers packets.] which
showed a 7 year retrospective of the program

MR. FERGUSON referred to slide 2, "AFHCAN Tel ehealth,” and said
that this was a federally funded project begun about 10 years
ago, and designed to create telehealth solutions for the federal
partners in Al aska.

3:33: 56 PM
VR. FERGUSON referred to slide 3, "Tel enedi ci ne. .. " and

expl ained that telehealth defined a use of teleconmunications to
provi de health care.

MR. FERGUSON pointed to slide 4, "Case Oiginated...," that
pictured the origination of a case as capturing the data and
sending it. He showed in slide 5, "...Case received," that a

consul tant can review the data and respond.
3:34: 37 PM
CO CHAI R KELLER asked if there was any necessary training.

MR. FERGUSON agreed that it was best to have sonmeone trained to
use the nedical devices, as well as the software. He said that
the use of the devices was straightforward.

CO CHAI R HERRON asked how many AFHCAN carts there were in the
state.

MR. FERGUSON said that there were about 400.
3:35: 54 PM

MR. FERGUSON pointed to slide 6 "A Primary Care Tool," and
expl ai ned that Al aska focused nore on primary care whereas, the
| oner 48 focused nore on specialty care. He noted that 75
percent of the Al aska nedical cases originated with a health
aide and concluded with a famly physician. He listed ear and
heart di sease, respiratory illness, vi t al si gns, dent al
problenms, and trauma as the nost often wused caneras and
noni t ors.

3:36:42 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2009



MR, FERGUSON nmoved on to slide 7, "ANMC Departnments now
accepting Telehealth cases, " which listed specialists who used
t he AFHCAN program including cardiol ogists, dermatologists, and
urol ogi sts.

3:37:12 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked to clarify that the consultants were
doctors in urban areas.

MR. FERGUSON, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that health

aides wanted to use the AFHCAN technol ogy. He said the
difficulty was with process reengineering, figuring out how to
fit this program in, and then denonstrating its value. He

opi ned that the measureabl e success was that so many departnents
were now using the system

3:37:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if there was a communication
pr ot ocol .

MR. FERGUSON replied that the AFHCAN program had standardized
forms and tenplates for the information.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about the quick response action
i Ssues.

MR. FERGUSON said that a health aide typically had a protocol
regardl ess of wusing the AFHCAN program He explained that
telehealth was just an additional tool to capture the data and

send it. He said the nost inportant thing was for the systemto
work quickly and efficiently. He reported that the AFHCAN
tel ehealth program system was ready with three touches to the
screen. He noted that it was necessary to call the recipient

and alert themto the incomng information.

MR. FERGUSON expl ained slide 8, "Telehealth Cases Created," and
said that the mpjority of telehealth systens see a decline of
usage because nost people, after seeing a nunmber of cases, have
no need for a consultation. He said that this AFHCAN program
was always adding specialties, equipnent, and technology, so
that the nunber of users and patients had al so increased.

3:42: 04 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2009



MR. FERGUSON referred to slide 9, "Store & Forward versus Real -
Time Telenedicine” and explained that these were different
t ool s. He gave exanples of the types of procedures that nost
often wused "store & forward” procedures, which included
radi ol ogy and der nmat ol ogy. He also offered exanples for "real-
time" procedures, which included psychiatry and neurol ogy. He
expl ained that the "trick” with telehealth was to find the right
tool for the specialty.

3:42: 37 PM

MR. FERGUSON expl ai ned slide 10, "Ear Tube Follow Up," and slide
11 picturing a bitten lip, which were both exanples for use of
the AFHCAN program as a communication tool for information
exchange.

3:43: 40 PM

MR. FERGUSON addressed slide 13, "Medicaid Study," and conpared
the travel expense savings to Medicaid when telenedicine was
used.

MR. FERGQUSON analyzed slide 14 "lnpact of Telehealth on
Preventing Patient Travel," and conpared primary care and
specialty care. He shared that patient travel was prevented in
75 to 80 percent of all specialty care cases, and in 20 percent
of all primary cases.

3:45:21 PM
MR. FERGUSON noved to slide 15, "lInpact of Preventing Patient
Travel ," and said that the savings in air travel expenses during

2007 was about $3.5 mllion. He said that this did not include
the additional travel expenses for lost work time, hotels,
nmeal s, etc.

MR. FERGUSON assessed slide 16, "lInpact of Telehealth on Causing
Patient Travel," and said that about 8 percent of telehealth
cases reveal ed a necessity for travel to receive care. He noted
that many of these cases were instrunental in providing early
treatment and in saving lives.

3:47:07 PM
MR. FERGUSON spoke about slide 17, "lInproving Access,"” and noted

that it was | ess expensive to send a md |evel provider, instead
of a specialist, to rural sites for screenings. He gave an

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- February 24, 2009



exanple on slide 18, "Traveling Audiologist,” which reflected
the savings for patient travel to those patients who were
waiting to see a specialist.

3:48: 18 PM

MR. FERGUSON explained that slide 19, "Qutcones,"” showed the
val ue of the AFHCAN tel ehealth program as a screening tool, and
he noted that 27 percent of the patients were screened out after
the initial visit.

3:49:15 PM

MR. FERGUSON pointed to slide 20, "Specific to Medicaid
Patients,” and said that the AFHCAN telehealth program saved
travel expenses for 83 percent of the Medicaid patients, nost of
whom would have required a parent or guardian to travel wth
t hem

3:50: 06 PM

MR. FERGUSON directed attention to slide 21, "Telehealth Inpact
on Backlogs and Average Wiiting Tinmes," and observed that the
wait time had been cut by alnobst two thirds with tel ehealth.

MR. FERGUSON offered slide 22 "Telehealth Inpact on Extended
Waiting Tines, (> 4 nonths),” and revealed that AFHCAN
telehealth had lowered the "nore than four nonth appointnent
wait time" from 47 percent of patients to 3 percent.

3:52: 02 PM

MR. FERGUSON furnished slide 24, "ANMC. Access to Care,” which
reviewed the turnaround tinme for specialist response. He
reported that 4,457 cases were reviewed in a two year period
and that 65 percent were turned around in the same business day,
with half of those conpleted in sixty mnutes.

3:53: 39 PM

MR. FERGUSON commented on slide 25, "Originating vs. Consultant
Time," which was a study of the consultant response tinme for
nore than 8,500 cases.

MR. FERGUSON briefed that slide 26, "Dermatology CME Visits,"

expl ained how the AFHCAN telehealth program allowed for nore
patients each year, and dramatically reduced the waiting tines.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- February 24, 2009



3:56:22 PM

MR. FERGUSON exanmined slide 27, "Provider Responses,"” which
listed provider responses to AFHCAN telehealth values, and he
noted that the highest response, 88 percent, agreed that this
program hel ped the patient conmunicate with the doctor.

3:57: 08 PM

MR. FERGUSON said that slide 28, "In Developnent,” reported on
new AFHCAN telehealth capabilities that were being devel oped,
whi ch included retina imagi ng for diabetics.

MR. FERGUSON di scussed slide 29, "New Consultative Mdels," and
shared a new care delivery system used by the Alaska Native
Medi cal Center, which referred all initial consultations through
the institution instead of through the departnent.

3:59: 05 PM

MR. FERGUSON showed slide 30, "Reinbursenent is critical for..."
and he said that telehealth is a technol ogy, not a project. He
said that the system needed to grow and be sust ai ned.

VR. FERGUSON noted on slide 31, "Alaska enjoys a very
supportive..." t hat tel eheal th had a very supportive
rei mbursenent clinmate, especially with Mdicaid, in Al aska. He
expl ai ned that AFHCAN telehealth relied on a standard coding
system He pointed out that for nobst doctor visits, the patient
would receive a conplete examnation, and the doctor could
justify a higher |level fee; whereas, telehealth captured focused
information that did not justify a high level consult fee. He
said that AFHCAN telehealth required a Ilarge infusion of
technol ogy and training, especially for the rural provider. He
said that there was not a reinbursement structure for the rura
provider, only for the consultant.

4:01: 30 PM

MR. FERGUSON spoke about slide 32, "Exporting Al aska Solutions.”
He said that the AFHCAN system software, and carts were
devel oped and built in Alaska, so they all had the "Made in
Al aska" | ogo. He said that the system was now being depl oyed
out si de Al aska.

4:03: 44 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2009



MR. FERGUSON, in response to Representative Ci ssna, said that
there was a hone AFHCAN telehealth project in Alaska, with a
nurse able to nonitor the patients froma central |ocation

4:04: 36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about the cost savings.

MR. FERGUSON expl ained that the hone tel ehealth nodel was based
on managi ng costs, not on reinbursenent. He said that nmanaged
care systens were interested because of the savings.

4:05:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if it was federal guidelines or the
state Medicaid health plan that restricted the aforenentioned
rei nbursenent issues. He asked if these were capital expense or
paynment issues.

4:06: 30 PM

MR. FERGUSON replied that there was a Mdicare Level 2
Heal t hcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) code, @014,
which allowed for the origination of a telehealth encounter. He
explained that the code was typically for reinbursement to a
vi deoconf erence presentation, but he proposed that the sanme code
not be limted to video, but also to create a telehealth case.
He qualified that people are paid for procedures that are
funded, but that packaging and sending a telehealth case was not
f unded.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that he wanted nore information. He
opined that the Medicaid rules mght have flexibility through
the state health plan to CVB.

4:08:34 PM

MR. FERGUSON, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that AFHCAN
funding came through Indian Health Services (IHS), and that |HS
was budgeting additional funds to develop the AFHCAN interface
to its electronic health records. He noted that Al aska Native
corporations had spent nore than $1 mllion for additional
t echnol ogy, as opposed to relying on federal funds.

4:09: 33 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- February 24, 2009



CO CHAI R HERRON asked what was needed to push this al ong.
4:10: 11 PM

MR. FERGUSON said that this was a conmmunication technology for
nmoving health care data to deliver care. He said that there was

a huge initiative for electronic health records. He said that
viewing this as a business nodel revealed that the rei nbursenent
i ssue was an incentive and a key conponent. He said that there

was not a need for a lot of equipnent, but a need for
oper at i ons.

4:12:17 PM

M5. PRICE-YONTS, in response to Representative Coghill, said
that SEARHC was already using electronic records which were
designed to interface with the state system

4:13: 36 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON asked if there was any noney in the stinulus
package for tel enedicine.

MR. FERGUSON said that he was not aware of nobney in the state
stimul us package. He offered that there was federal noney for
health information technology, but that it was unclear if that
woul d be designated for tel ehealth.

4:15:21 PM

CO-CHAIR KELLER asked about the incentive for a 6 mnute
response.

4:16: 28 PM

VR. FERGUSON explained that this was a problemfocused
consultation, which allowed for a pronpt response, and he opined
that it was not driven by the rei nbursenent.

4:17:11 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:17 p. m

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -13- February 24, 2009



